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Welcome

The Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College present their twenty fith Report and Financial
Statements,

Statement from the Chair of the Board of Management

Having been appointed in May 2018, | have been very impressed with the work of the College in providing our
students with an excellent educational experience and positive outcomes. The College continues to be on one of
the highest performers in the sector with a very strong focus on the value of vocational education. Investars in
People at Platinum Standard reflects the quality of our outstanding staff and leadership who have the key
responsibility of educating and fraining our students. Sound govermnance lies at the heart of the Board of
Management and the externally undertaken board effectiveness review reinforces the quality of the Board's
performance.

| am very proud that the College remains financially sound particularly in the light of a challenging extemal financial
etwvironment and that we clearly envisage continuing that financial health into the future,

Ve will continue to work effectively with our colleagues in The Lanarkshire Board to help provide a comprehensive
educational experience across the Region.

| would like to express the Board of Management's appreciation to all our staff in the College and to our many
partners all of whom have contributed towards our continuing success as we strive towards our objective of being
Scotland's leading provider of education and fraining.

Avdoew F Een

Andrew Kerr BA (Hons) MBA
Chair of the Board of Management

27 November 2018

Statement from the Principal

The funding that the College receives is to ensure that our students are supperted and encouraged to achieve the
very best they can. Through robust financial management we want to ensure that we provide The Scottish
Government with outstanding value for money. We are delighted that whilst we continue to expand we have
maintained our position as a high performing college that retums a balanced budget,

The partnerships forged between the Board of Management, Staff and Students make the College what it is.

Stewart McKjl Hons), Dip Ace, Dip Ed

Principal

27 November 2018
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| Performance Report

Overview and Operating Context
As an overview to the Performance Report, the College would highlight several pertinent points to give context.

The Scottish college sector faces many challenges, operating, as it does, in a time of overall financial restraint in
the public sector and an acknowledged degree of uncertainty over future funding streams. South Lanarkshire
College has been successful in increasing its core activity allocation and has been advised by SFC to assume
EU-funded activity and associated income will continue through 2018M9, 2019/20 and into 2021/22.

In accordance with the Scottish Government policy, the College has expanded its Childzare provision and now
offers 6 HNC classes in Childhood practice. It has also expanded its STEM provision with a particular focus on
encouraging women into Science. The College remains well-placed to take advantage of any new opportunities
that may arise in that regard.

The ONS reclassification of Scottish further education colleges and the resultant changes to operating, reporting
and accounting brings its own challenges, requiring flexibility and adaptability. The College has implemented fully
the new national agreement for pay and conditions of service for lecturing staff. The local branch of the EIS Union
and Senior Managers met regularly over a period of weeks and, through effective dialogue, agreed approaches
that address fully the requirements of the National Agreement.

South Lanarkshire College continues to develop its relationship with its Lanarkshire Regional partner and has
contributed to the relevant sections of the Lanarkshire Business Recovery Plan,

The management of risk is becoming a more and more important factor and the Region has established a risk
register that takes account of cross-Lanarkshire issues. This dovetails with the individual college risk registers and
supports the Regional Strategic Body, and its individual members, to have an overarching outlook,

Performance analysis
Strategic Planning Overview

The College aims to publish a new Strategic Plan in Septerber 20198, The review process began in June 2018
with the Board of Management and stakeholder consultation planned for November 2018 and Spring 2019. Its
current Strategic Plan entitled 20020 Vision was published in August 2014, covering the period 2014-2020. The
Plan was developed to link with requirements for future education and training to develop the economy, the
Scottish Funding Council Regional Outcome Agreement process, Scottish Government priorities and national
arrangements for guality assurance and improvement.

The current plan is constructed around three strategic priorities with the College’s operational planning documents
linking directly to these strategic pricrities. The twin purpose of organising plans around a formal framework is to
help to deliver specific outcomes for learners as well as broad outcomes as an organisation. The three strategic
priorities are:

1. Weaim to have satisfied students

2. Weaim to deliver effective skills training

3. We aim to promote sustainable behaviours

During the life of the new Strategic Plan, South Lanarkshire College aims to build on its current successes:
s record levels of student achievement

a series of awards for innovation and the environment

meeting key targets for carbon management

comprehensive CPD approaches, leading to a Platinum Investors in People Award

sound financial controls and continuing financial stability

the award of Investors and Leaders in Diversity at Level 3

multiple student awards in national competitions
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Performance Report

Performance Analysis (continued)

Purposes and Activities of the College
Vision To be Scotland's leading provider of college education and training.

Mission To ensure that all leamers are well-prepared for the future by developing their skills, knowledge
and understanding in a high-quality learning environment.

Ethos We believe in;

*  continual improvement
innovation
being passionate about our work
promoting equality and diversity
high achisvement
listening and acting on feedback
community and social value
sustainability
promoting health and safety

All these contribute towards mesting the Scettish Government's ohjectives of a society which is:
» wealthier and fairer

healthier

safer and stronger

smarter

greener

Commercial Income and Strategic Growth

South Lanarkshire College acknowledges the operational risks associated with certain areas of its funding and
thus continues to concentrate efforts and resources on developing non-core business to diversify and thus spread
the risk, The College is constantly looking to expand its portfolio of provision with a view to benefitting the economy
in the local and wider area.

The College meets and slightly exceeds its activity level target each year and has done s0 over a period of several
years of consistent growth, demonstrating the potential that exists in the immediate catchment area and beyond.

The College benefits from receipt of European Social Funding. Until 2017-18 this funding came through the Youth
Employment Initiative (YEI). The YEI accounts for 5,806 credits which represents around 12% of the College’s
activity. The rate received per credit was revised in 2016/17 to better reflect the average rate for the sector —
previously the rate was well below sector average.

In 201718 the College delivered, for the first time, activity under the Future Workforce Development Fund,
engaging directly with employers to provide non-statutory education and training.

The College's investment in expanding its catchment of overseas students in recent years, has had an emphasis
on developing links with several colleges in China from where the College has hosted both students and staff. It
has developed robust systems for monitoring and control.  The result is that the College was awarded Highly
Trusted Sponsor status by the UK Borders Agency in June 2012, and continues to retain this status, This means
that the College is not limited in the numbers of overseas students it can atiract However, changes in UK
legislation now make the recruitment of overseas students more challenging.
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Performance Report

Performance Analysis (continued)

Regional Development

South Lanarkshire College is a high-performing college. It contributes significantly to the Outcomes for the
Lanarkshire Region as a whole, performing above regional targets for student attainment and outcomes.

The Financial Memorandum between The Lanarkshire Board and South Lanarkshire College was finalised in
January 2016. We collaborate with New College Lanarkshire to map out the future of FE in Lanarkshire and to
increase opportunities for learners. Both Colleges work together across multiple areas and jointly deliver outcomes
through the Regional Outcome Agreement.

Key Issues and Risks

The key issues and risks that could affect the College in delivering its objectives are contained in the College's
Risk Register with the main items being as follows:

The College fails to achieve its various activity targets resulting in a loss of potential income;

The College cannot maintain financial stability, both short term and long term;

Scottish Funding Council can provide no surety of core funding beyond 201%;

Brexit results in a reduction in core funding and indirect funding supported by the EU;

Scottish Government requirement for 3% per annum efficiency savings reducing essential overhead
spend;

Mational collective bargaining increasing payroll costs to an unaffordable level out-with our contral;
Lanarkshire Region allocates insufficient core activity and/or rate per credit;

There is a failure of financial processes and confrols,

Breaches of legislation including staff issues and health and safety,

SFC supply insufficient funds for capital projects and the College maintenancs requirernent;

There is a failure of governance either within the College or the Region;

The quality of learning and teaching is not maintained;

The College infrastructure is compromised either unintentionally or by cybercrime;

South Lanarkshire College has a Risk Management Group comprising several senior members of management.
The Group has a programme of review which covers all pertinent areas of College activity, including exposure re
major income sources, employment legislation, IT support, disaster recovery and business continuity. It has
utilised the expertise of external advisors such as its insurers and, in the case of the new build, its project managers
to ensure that risks have been identified and that steps are taken to minimise both the risk and any potential effect
should the risk or uncertainty crystallise.

The Risk Register is presented fo four meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Management,

In April 2015, the Internal Auditors, Scoft-Moncrieff reviewed South Lanarkshire College’s risk management
arrangements in accordance with the Intemal Audit Plan. They concluded that “South Lanarkshire College has a
strong risk management framewaork that is as well developed as any we have seen in the college sector”. The
College's Risk Management Group strives to maintain and develop this.

The major risk facing the College concerns the sustainability of core funding and the uncertainty surrounding the
portion of funding supported by the EU. One major area of concern, and risk, over recent years has been the
shortfall in student support funds experienced by the College. This situation reached a critical status in 2014/15,
but this was eventually resclved and the ongoing risk has been mitigated with an increase in the College's student
support funding allocation. 1t does, however, remain an issue that College management maintains a watchful eye
over,

The Scottish Funding Council receives significant income from the European Union, which it utillises to part-fund
additional activity for the further education sector formerly through the Youth Employment Initiative. Historically,
the College has received around 12% of its core activity income via the Initiative. For 2017118, the income from
YEl was £1,37 1k (11.7% of core SFC activity) plus allied student support funds of £435k.

6



SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

Performance Report

Performance Analysis (continued)

The Youth Employment Initiative, 2 project to support activity at the further education level ran until the end of the
2017/18 academic session. A new ESF initiative, Developing Scotland's Workforce ("DSW) which supports higher
education provision, is in place for 2018/19 and the College has secured £1.531m of funding under this
programme. It should be noted that this activity is not accompanied by an allocation for student support.

The decision to leave the European Union will chviously affect the source of this funding. It will also affect funding
in ather areas such as: income from the ERASMUS programme which funds development of staff and students;
the opportunity to apply for Eurcpean Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grants; and core funding currently
received re EU students who may no lenger come to the UK to study. The effects of the withdrawal of EU funding
will also impact third party providers of learning and training such as the local authorities, the Construction Industry
Training Board (CITE) and Skills Development Scotland, who all receive EU support to fund activity that they work
with the college sector to deliver. Whilst the College can identify the direct EU funding that it receives and assess
the financial risk of its diminution or withdrawal, the actual impact on indirect funding is not so easy to determine
and the College is aware that it must be looking to develop a financial strategy that takes account of the likely
decrease in non-core funding. The sector is working with the Scottish Government and the Scottish Funding
Council to mitigate the effects of this decrease.

Funded Activity Targets

For session 201516, SFC replaced the Weighted SUM with Credits as a method of allocating and measuring
student activity. A summary of activity targets measured in weighted SUMs over the four academic years from
201112 to 201415 is as follows:

ESF/ "Efficiency” Total

Weighted Original In-year SFC Lanarkshire | unfunded Activity
SUMs Grant in Aid | additional project Region activity Target | Audited

allocation | allocation | allocation activity Activity*
201112 37 673 0 1,826 0 0 39,399 39476
2012113 34,391 0 2,586 4,000 1,205 42,282 42,329
201314 50,707 0 2,000 0 1] 82707 52 024
201415 51,087 0 2,118 2,000 1] 55,205 55,432

From 201516 onwards, the allocation in Credits is as follows:

ESF/ “Efficiency” Total
Original In-year SFC Lanarkshire | unfunded Activity |
| Credits Grant in Aid | additional project Region activity Target Audited |
[ allocation | allocation | allocation activity Activity*
201516 38,478 2,500 5,906 0 0 45,884 46,885
201617 40,978 0 5,908 0 0 46,884 47,355
2017118 | 42088 | 627 | 5908 0 0 | 48821 49,037
201819 42 846 ] | 5906 0 0 48,853 nfa

Ower a period of continued growth and curriculum change and development, the college has always met its
credit target and deliverad high attainment rates for students. (*Audited activity as certified by our Internal
Auditors)
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Performance Report

Performance Analysis (continued)

Estates

The College’s Estates Strategy is intended to complement the overall strategic and operational plans. A syncpsis
of the Strategy would be:

Acknowledging that the aesthetics of a teaching environment can have a significant positive ethos on learning
outcomes and that a comfortable environment enhances the overall learning experience, the main objectives
of the College’s Estates Strategy are:

» to maintain the existing high quality environment both in functionality and look;

« toconsider priorities in providing and obtaining best value in relation to the estates and all its activities,
providing a safe and secure environment, complying with changing legislation and ensuring that
sufficient management processes are in place;

« ensure afinancially sound and sustainable environment aimed at providing an ever-improving service
to our stakeholders;

« acknowledge the importance of environmental issues in the way we enhance the College estate.

As part of this strategy, in February 2016, we opened our Low Carbon Building, a new teaching facility on the
existing site costing £2.5m, delivered on budget and on time. The Low Carbon Building is a standalone building
providing 8 additional classrooms with an internal floor area of 559 square metres on two levels. Additional
teaching space has been required as a result of the continuing growth in activity levels in the College. The new
building has also enabled us to free up much-needed additional social space for students in the main building.

The new building utilises low carbon design concepts and was the first in the UK to be awarded an Outstanding
BREEAM (2014) certificate at the design stage. BREEAM sets the standard for best practice in sustainable
building design, construction and operation and is one of the most comprehensive and widely recognised
measures of a building's environmental performance. The College also won its third Green Gown Award in
Movember 2017 for its pioneering work on low-energy low-carbon initiatives.

The project was financed mainly by a donation from The South Lanarkshire College Foundation together with an
ERDF grant and capital funding from SFC. The College also received a grant from South Lanarkshire Council's
Renewable Energy Fund to help finance the building, together with contributions from commercial sponsors. One
of the major benefits of the new facility is its flexibility, as it is a separate building from the main centre. This
increases its potential use for local businesses, third sector organisations and other community groups.

Measuring Performance

The College monitors a range of Key Performance Indicators to measure its outcomes and impact and presents
these to its Board. The KPls are summarised below. A more detailed analysis of these indicators will take place
later in the year following publication of SFC data for all colleges.

» Operating a Break-even Budget

The College once again delivered on its break-even budget in 2017/18. With all of the changes in statutory financial
reporting and the various returns which the College is required to make to SFC, management place great
emphasis on College cash flow forecasts to ensure that the College has sufficient funds.

s Maintaining High Attainment Rates for Students

The College’s overall attainment rate remains similarly high to that of the previous year at 76% for all provision.
Further Education full time students make up the largest cohort with attainment rates of §9% and Higher Education
full-ime students have attainment rates of 74%. These attainment rates are well above sector norms and are
amongst the best in Scotland.
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Performance Report

Performance Analysis (continued)

=  Ensuring that Students Progress fo Sustainable and Successful Positive Destinations

The most recent publication on College leaver destinations from SFC was published on 8 October 2018 for leavers
in 2016/17. Table S$3.6 of the publication analyses all returns and confirms that 84.9% of South Lanarkshire
College’s students have positive destinations. Table $3.7 of the publication shows that our proportion of leavers
going directly into work at the end of their course of 23.5% is well above the Scottish average of 20%.

s  Delivering a high-quality student experience

In the most recent survey of student experience, 97.5% of HE full-time students and 98.4% of FE full-time students
reported satisfaction with their college experience. The College's students are amongst the most positive in
Scotland regarding their experience at college and the support they received towards getting them into a good job
at the end of their course.

s Providing Value for Money as a Public Body

The most recent data from SFC show that the average SFC-funded in-year price per credit (2017/18 data) is
£232 99 for South Lanarkshire College. This is below the Scoftish average of £242.84 per credit. Indeed, if the
College received the Scottish average price per credit it would have another £472 741 in its budget. At £232.99
per credit, the College was also funded by SFC through the Regional Strategic Body at a lower overall price per
credit than the Regional average price of £237.62 per credit. The College thersfore contributes significantly
towards Regional finances and towards operating efficiency in a Regional context. Furthermore, the outcomes
delivered for students are all well above the Scoftish norm. These include high student attainment rates, high
percentages going into positive destinations and jobs and very high success rates for learners from the most
disadvantaged backgrounds. In addition, the College has always exceeded its credit target. The high levels of
outputs, combined with the low price per credit, means that the College delivers excellent value for money as a
public body.

«  Operating with a reduced carbon footprint and energy levels compared to our base year

The College set itself a target in 2007/8 to reduce its carbon footprint by 16% overa 7 to 10 year period. The actual
reduction has been 42% from the baseline in 2008 (see 2016/17 annual report). The new low-energy, low-carbon
building is performing slightly better than initial modelling suggested and has not had any negative impact on the
overall carbon emissions from our campus.

e Scottish Government Sustainability Reporting and other environmental impacts

The College has been invalved in voluntary carbon reporting since 2007 through the EAUC. In 2015, the College
participated fully in the non-mandatory framework of reporting for the Scottish Government that preceded the
2016-onwards mandatory reporting requirements. |t received very positive feedback from Sustainable Scotland
Metwork regarding the report submitted. The College's Sustainability Group has on their remit the requirements
to draw together the mandatory report for the Scottish Government. The College met the requirement in 2016 and
2017 to produce a mandatory carbon report and the process is already underway to produce the next report
(2017/18). The College confirms full compliance with the Scottish Sustainability reporting requirements outlined in
the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 and will present the report in the required format by 30 November 2018.
In 2014/15 the College's carbon footprint was 1,449t eCO: and in 2016/17 the college's carbon footprint was 1,135t
eC0z, representing a 21.7 percent reduction over this time period.

The active Sustainability Group has a remit to oversee various projects that promote sustainable behaviours such
as the re-usable cups project, the initiative to power down PCs when not in use, the change from plastic to paper
drinking straws and the lisison with the catering suppliers over working with Zero-Waste Scotland to reduce waste
streams and also reduce the amount of food container waste where practicable. The College’s array of 380 solar
panels, ground and air source heat pumps and arrangements for rainwater harvesting on its buildings continue to
provide environmental benefit as well as contributing towards financial efficiency.

= Social Matters

In 2017/18, the College was the first in Scotland to infroduce an initiative to provide free sanitary products for all
users of the campus. This was commended by the EIS in a motion at their national conference and noted on
various BBC and SKY news channels.
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| Performance Report f— - __:l

Performance Analysis (continued)

Each year, in partnership with the Student Association there is a Mental Health Awareness week, Equality and
Choices event, a Health and Wellbeing event, "Green day”, an LGBTI event and Macmillan Cancer Relief coffes
momings. The College maintains a strong focus on developing students as responsible citizens as well as
developing their vocational skills. Throughout the building, there is signage that encourages all users to show
respect for each other.

The College has a strong ethos on promoting equality and diversity as outlined in its Strategic Plan and was the
first in Scotland to achieve Investors in Diversity as well as "Leader in Diversity” accreditation. The College was
identified by the National Centre for Diversity as being fifth top in the UK for its approaches to promating equality
and diversity. Our Equality Officer was awarded UK Employee of the year in January 2018, During 2018, the
College prepared for, and was accredited as, a Carer Positive employer and has promoted this through policies,
procadures and with the support of the new Carers Support Group.

There is a strong focus on providing support for the most disadvantaged learners, with evidence of the
effectivenass displayed through the high attainment rates achieved by these learer groups,

An extension to the social space provided in the College atrium has enabled learners to have a larger high-quality
area to meet out-with timetabled time and the forest mural on the library wall has been well received by students
in relation to it improving the quality of the study space.

The College works with its refectory providers to actively promaote healthy eating; there is also an arangement in
place for unsold food to be sold at a much-discounted price rather than being disposed of.

The College's respective pension schemes for lecturing and support staff incorporate life assurance cover
amounting to twice the staff member's salary. The College has purchased additional cover which increases this
to three times salary cover for those who are members of the pension scheme. Those out-with the pension scheme
are covered for one times their annual salary.

The College has an established wellbeing strategy with several initiatives designed to enhance the physical and
mental health of staff. These include a walking and running club, circuit training and access fo turbo trainers; a
slimming club; mindfulness classes for staff and students; selfreferral to confidential employee counselling;
discounted rates for spectacles required for VDU work, gym membership and a visiting chiropody service; plus
aerohic / dance classes and a staff choir. The College has staff discount arrangements with several local
businesses.

The College also enters a team in the annual Glasgow 10K run, with a donation going to that year's designated
charity.

10
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Performance Report

Financial Performance
Financial Objectives

With the overriding aim of maintaining long term financial stability, the College Board approved the following key
financial objectives in May 2017
s  To achieve long-term financial sustainability and match resources with College strategic objectives, on
an ongoing basis,
« Tomanage short term working capital in accordance with SFC ONS requirements;
« To develop productive capacity to meet current and future learning and resource objectives
through the economic, efficient and effective deployment of resources;

s To plan and control the financing of College developments and ensure finance is available to
fund capital expenditure per the College’s strategic plans;

» To provide a consistent basis for evaluating strategic alternatives and developing effective
financial planning and risk management;

= Tointegrate and harmonise financial and other College strategies;

« Towork with our Regional partner to identify, and take advantage of, opportunities to minimise
costs, particularly through collaborative procurement;

Financial Performance for the Year

The following sections provide a summary of our financial performance in the year from the financial statements
which are published on pages 31 to 52,

The Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (*“SQCIE”) for the year ended 31 July 2018 shows a
surplus for the year of £328k (2017 £15k) before the actuarial adjustment in respect of pension scheme gains of
£1.877m (2017 £190k) and the surplus on revaluation of land and buildings of £1.795m produced a total
comprehensive income for the year of £4m (2017 £205k). We have no control over the pension scheme actuarial
movement nor the surplus on revaluation of land and buildings.

It should be noted that the core surplus for the year has been swollen by £292k in respect of the release of the
balance of a Lennartz advance from HM Revenue and Customs, As £292k of the original advance does not now
require to be repaid to HMRC, this amount was released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year
and has been shown as an exceptional item (see note 14). Without this £292k credit, the College essentially
delivered an its breakeven budget for the year.

Grants received from SFC have increased from the previous year reflecting both an increase in student activity
credits of 3.8% and an increase in the overall average price per credit of 1.8%.

Tuition fees are up by 17% on the prior year augmented by an increase in SDS income and £134k of income from
the Energy Academy project (reflected in other confracts). This is despite ongoing difficulties in attracting public
sector funding for other contracts in the current austere financial environment.

Other income is down slightly on the previous year following a reduction in other revenue grants.

Payroll costs have continued to increase, with the College no longer being in control of wage bargaining with this
now in the hands of a National Joint Negotiating Committee. With the increase in teaching activity, our average
number of employees (expressed as full time equivalents) has increased by 2 to 258, Payroll costs (before the
FRS102 pensions adjustment) have increased by £87% (8.7%) with the negotiated pay settlement plus
employer's pension contributions and the apprentice levy all forcing costs upwards.

11
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Performance Report

Financial Performance (continued)

Other operating expenses are in line with the previous year reflecting an organisational focus on efficiencies and
tight cost controls imposed by management. Consumer price inflation (CPI) was 2.4% for the year to July 2018.

The balance sheet was boosted by the revaluation of College land and buildings in July 2018. This resulted in an
uplift to land and buildings of £1.795m with an increase in the revaluation reserve of this amount. The land and
buildings were revalued as at 31 July 2018 by Gerald Eve LLP, a regulated firm of Chartered Surveyors (see note
10).

The main additions to fixed assets were in respect of the fitting out of a science lab, building improvements to
accommadate the growing number of students and staff within the Cellege, together with the purchase of additional
computer equipment, There were no fixed asset disposals in the year.

Debtors have increased slightly from last year at £898k with £451k of the total being ESF Youth Employment
Initiative monies which are due for disbursement by SFC in October 2018,

Our cash position at 31 July 2018 was optimum with a cash balance of £612k, which enabled us to fund the
operation of the College for the first two weeks in August 2018 until the first drawdown of SFC cash for the
academic year 2018/19 was available on 15 August 2018. Following the ONS reclassification of incorporated
colleges as public bodies, we are no longer permitted to hold large cash balances. Whilst we have an overdraft
facility with RBS, we did not require to use this in the year at our cash pressure points of March/April 2018 or
JulyfAugust 2018,

Creditors falling due within one year are lower than last year at £2.38m following the elimination of the Lennartz
creditor which was £378k last year. Other creditor balances are in line with the previous year.

The College complies with the CBI Prompt Payment Code and has a policy of paying its suppliers at the end
of the month following invoice or supply, or as otherwise agreed with the supplier concerned. All disputes and
complaints are handled as quickly as possible. Creditor payment days were 13 days as at 31 July 2018 (13
days at 31 July 2017). The College had no interest payments liable under the Late Payment of Commercial
Debts (Interest) Act 1998,

To comply with FRS102, deferred capital grants now only consist of capital grants received from Government
sources. Next year's projected release of £719k (2017 £684k) is shown within creditors falling due within one year
with the balance of £22 6m (2017 - £23m) shown within creditors falling due after one year.

The early retirement pension provision has reduced by £35k to £513k.

The College uses actuaries (Hymans Robertson LLP) to undertake an annual valuation of its share of the
Strathclyde Pension Fund liability. The valuation at 31 July 2018 reduced the deficit on the College’s share of this
net pension liability from £2.742m at 31 July 2017 to £1.352m as at 31 July 2018. £1.877m of the net movement
was an actuarial surplus (outwith our control) which has been reflected through the SOCIE as an increase in our
total comprehensive income for the year.

Taking all of the above into account, the SOCIE shows total comprehensive income for the year of £4m (2017
£205k), which flows through, to the Balance Sheet as an increase in total reserves of £4m to give a reserves total
of £8.861m as at 31 July 2018.

In the year, the College had a positive cashflow with an increase in cash at bank and in hand of £467k (see note

19). This essentially flowed through from operations after adjusting for net depreciation of £205k and movements
in working capital.

12
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Performance Report

Financial Performance (continued)

Core Financial Performance Indicators
The following financial KP1s demonstrate a healthy and improving overall financial position.

| ] 2017118 | 2016/17
| Non SFC income as a % of total income | 20.5% ' 17.9%
| Current assets : current liabilities = 0.64:1 _ 0.32:1
| Days cash —— 15 | )

| Prompt payment to suppliers 13 days 13 days
| Met assets including pension provision £8.9m £4.9m

Financial Resource Position

The UK Office for National Statistics (ONS) reclassified all incorporated colleges as central government
entities for the purposes of accounting and budgeting with effect from 1 April 2014, This has had a direct
impact an the way in which the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) funds colleges and, in particular, the system
of paying grants. It is SFC's responsibility to allocate both cash and resource budgets to colleges in order
to support the delivery of their Outcome Agreements. SFC now:

» Distributes cash budgets on the basis of need:;

* Monitors the cash paid out by SFC against the overall Financial Year cash budget;
+ Monitors colleges’ spend and forecast outturn against approved resource budgets;
+ Monitors college sustainability;

+ Provides information to Scottish Government and to HM Treasury on the expected cash drawdown and
on spend against resource budgets for the government financial year to 31 March;

Annual Revenue Resource and Capital Resource Budget Returns are used by SFC to monitor colleges'
adherence to these resource and capital budgets. Sector level information is sent to the Scottish
Government and then onto HM Treasury for consolidation into its Online System for Central Accounting
and Reporting (OSCAR).

The basis of compilation of these returns is a mixture of cash and accruals accounting and differs from
FRS 102. The Annual Resource Return also includes all student support income and expenditure
{including those funds administered on an agency basis). The College reported a net overspend of £116k
on its Annual Resource Budget for the year ended 31 March 2018 (£10k underspend for the year ended
31 March 2017) and a £14k underspend on its Capital Resource Budget for the year to 31 March 2018 (a
balanced Capital Resource Budget for the year to 31 March 2017).

Spend of Fixed Budget for Priorities

Following reclassification, colleges receive a non-cash budget to cover net depreciation. This additional
budget is not reflected through the SOCI which is prepared in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. This has
been designated by SFC as the fixed budget for priorities and was spent by us as follows;

2017118 201617

E000 £000
Fixed budget for priorities 187 227
Revenue priorities
Estates costs 111 -
Capilal Prionities
Lennartz repayments 86 227
Total priorities spend 187 227
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_F_’e._rfurma_n_c:_é Report

Financial Performance (continued)

Adjusted Operating Position

With the College now designated as a public benefit entity, additional disclosures are required by the
Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council. The adjusted operating position shown below
is intended o reflect the financial performance of the College after allowing for non-cash adjustments and
material distorting adjustments produced by the SORP. The adjusted operating position is therefore
designed to smooth out valatility in results arising from FRS102 and give a better indication of the College's
cash generative capacity.

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2018 31 July 2017

E0OO E000

Surplus from SOCIE before other gains / (losses) 36 15
Add  depreciation {net of deferred capital grant) 205 241
non-cash pension adjustment — net service cost 407 a0y
non-cash pension adjustment — net interest cost a0 63
non-cash pension adjustment - early refirement provision (3) 27

Less fixed budget for priorities allocated to Lennartz repayments {86) {227)
fixed budget for priorties allocated to estates costs {111) -
Adjusted operating surplus 528 428

Guoing Concermn

After making appropriate enguiries, the Board of Management considers that the College has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, This being the case, the Board continues to adopt
the going concemn basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Performance Report on pages 4 to 14 was approved on behalf of the Board of Management on 27 November
2018 and signed onits behalf by

Andrew Kerr — Chair of the Board of Management
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Accountability Report

The Accountability Report is split into two sections: Corporate Governance Report, and a Remuneration and Staff
Report. The College is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability Statement.

Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report explains the composition and organisation of the College’s governance
structures and how they support the achievement of the College objectives,

The Corporate Governance Report includes a Directors' Report, a statement of the Board of Management
responsibilities and a governance statement.

Directors’ Report

Statutory Background

Opened originally as the School of Building in 1948 and subsequently being renamed Cambuslang College, the
College was established under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 for the purpose of
canducting the business of the College. In March 1993, the name was changed to South Lanarkshire College
and in February 2008, the College moved to a £33 million iconic campus in East Kilbride.

The College is a registered charity (Scottish Charity Number SC021181).

Directors
The directors of South Lanarkshire College are the Board of Management whose details are set out in the
Governance statement.

Register of Interests
Board members are required to complete a declaration of interests. No significant company directorships or other
interests were held which may have conflicted with their management responsibilities. (see note 25)

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The Board members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditor is unaware; and sach Board member has
taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the College's auditor is aware of that information,

Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no important events occurring after the year-end, which fall under the definition of a post balance sheet
event.

Review of Financial Performance
A full review of financial performance has been given in the Performance Report on pages 11 fo 14 of these
financial statements.

Taxation Status

The College has been entered into the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1)
of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a Charity registered in Scotland.
The College is recognised by HM Revenue and Custorns as a charity for the purposes of section 505, Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and is exempt from Corporation Tax on its charitable activities. The College receives
no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.

Regional Board Expenses

The College contributes to the share of the costs of operating the Lanarkshire Regional Board. It's share of the
costs in the year ended 31 July 2018 was £33,216 (2017 £22,048). This increase included the additional costs
involved in the preparation of Regional consolidated financial statements.
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Bccuuntability Report

Statement of the Board of Management's Responsibilities

In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, the Board of Management is
respansible for the administration and management of the College's affairs, including ensuring an effective system
of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the College and enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scofland) Acts 1992 and 2005, the 2015
Staternent of Recommendad Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the 2016/17 Government
Financial Reporting Model (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government and other relevant accounting standards.
In addition, the Board of Management through its designated office holder (The Principal) is required to prepare
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the College’s state of affairs and of
the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that period.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding
Council, which brings together the provisions of the Financial Memorandum with other formal disclosures that the
Scoftish Funding Council reguire the Board of Management to make in the financial staternents and related notes.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

«  select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

« prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
College will continue in operation.

Financial statemeants of the College may be published on the College’s website in accordance with legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the College’s website is the responsibility of the
Board. The Board's responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained
therain.

The Board of Management has taken reasonable steps to!

s ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for which they have
been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with The Lanarkshire Board and any other
conditions which the Funding Council may from time to time prescribe;

s  ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other sources;

s safeguard the assets of the College and prevent and detect fraud;

s secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure;

= ensure sound corporate governance and proper conduct of the College’s operations.
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Accountability Report

Statement of the Board of Management's Responsibilities (continued)

The key elements of the College’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the
responsibilities set out above, include the following:

= clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and
administrative departments;

= acomprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income,
expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;

= regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of financial results
involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns;

= clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and confrol of expenditure, with investment
decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review
according to approval levels set by the Board of Management,

= comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the Audit
Committee and Finance Committee;

= 3 professional Internal Audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit Committes and
endorsed by the Board of Management and whose head provides the Board of Management with a report
on internal audit activity within the Cellege and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
College's system of internal contrel, including internal financial control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss,

Governance Statement

The 5LC Board is responsible for the exercise of all functions of South Lanarkshire College. It exercises
its powers and authorities through a Scheme of Delegation, which it determines and approves,

The Board is made up of the Principal and independent non-executive members appointed by the Board,
together with employee and student representatives who are elected by their peers, The Chair of the Board
and its committees are non-executive members. The Board sets and monitors the strategic direction of
SLC following consultation with The Lanarkshire Board, oversees College work and sets high standards
of governance and management.

The Board's remit and responsibilities are laid out in the Constitution and Articles of Government, and the matters
specially reserved to the Board are set out in that document, by custom and under the Financial Memaorandum
between the Lanarkshire Board and South Lanarkshire College dated January 2016.

The College Principal is accountable directly to the SLC Board for the proper conduct of SLC's affairs and is also
accountable directly to the Chief Officer of The Lanarkshire Board for SLC's proper use of funds deriving from The
Lanarkshire Board and its compliance with the requirements of the Financial Memorandum.

Since the introduction of The Lanarkshire Board, funding is now allocated to the College by The
Lanarkshire Board and is subject to the condition of compliance with objectives outlined within the regional
outcome agreement. To provide the College management team with assurance that SLC are maintaining
their commitment to deliver the regional outcome agreement objectives, updates highlighting performance
against key targets are presented to weekly College management team meetings where actions to address
areas of potential underperformance are agreed.

When new Board members are required they are recruited via competitive interviews, focussing on their skills,
experience and other attributes which would benefit the College. A full interview process is conducted including a
meeting with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, with the Principal and the Clerk to the Board in attendance.
The Board of Management underwent a major refreshment in June 2016,
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Accountability Report

Governance Statement (continued)

s Jane McCartney, who had been Chair from January 2010, intimated that she would be standing down
as of 31st March 2018. The recruitment process was managed by the Clerk to the South Lanarkshire Board
utilising the services of an external recruitment agency. The selection panel comprised the Chair of the
Lanarkshire Regional Board; the Director of Leadership and Governance at College Development Network;
the Chair of West College Glasgow; and the managing director of the recruitment agency.

Following interviews on 10th May 2018, Mr Andrew Kerr was duly chosen as the successful candidate.
This decision was sent to the Regional Strategic Board for ratification, and this was received on 24th May
2018. In the intervening period, it was agreed by the South Lanarkshire College Board, that Mr. John
Gallacher act as Chair and Mr. Paul Hutchinson act as Vice-Chair.

The Board of Management who served in the year together with any post year end changes were -

Name | Designation | Date of Change Occupation
Andrew Kerr Chair | Appointed 25 May 2018 | CEO of Sense Scotland
Jane McCartney | Chair | Retired 31 March 2018 | Director of HR (Retired)
Paul Hutchinson | Vice Chair | Appointed as Vice Chair | Head of Profession, Communications &
- 18 September 2018 Metworks, Atkins Ltd.
John Gallacher | Vice Chair | Retired 28 May 2018 Finance & project manager
Stewart McKillop | College Principal i College Principal & Chief Executive
Linda McTavish Chair of the Lanarkshire Board
Stuart Dillett Manager with idverde
Chriz McDowall | Chair of Human Partner at Anderson Strathern LLF
| Resources Committee |
Robert Ralston Chair of Audit Chartered Accountant
. | Cammittee !
Sean Duffy Chief Executive of the Wise Group
Clare Gibb Director & Company Secretary of
= McConnell Gibb Parthership
Irene Johnstone Former Head of British Lung Foundation
B | {Scotland & Northern Ireland)
Gill Stillie | Mon-Executive Director — Scottish
. Prison Services
Pauline | Resigned 19 September | Contract manager at CITB
Robertson 2017 |
Jean Carratt Lecturing staff | Care lecturer- SLC
_ representative
Rose Harkness Support staff Head of Student Services at SLC
representative -
Melizsa Mitchell Student Vice- Resigned 28 May 2018 | Student at SLG
President 2017-18 _ .
Julie McKenzie Student President Appointed 19 Student at SLC
2017-18 September 2017
Resigned 18 September
| 2018
| Claire Paterson | Student President Appointed 18
I. 2018-19 September 2018
| Elizabeth Student Vice- Appointed 18
| Newlands President 2018-19 September 2018

Ms. Gill Stillie serves as Senior Independent Member of the Board. Ms. Angela Martin, an employee of the
College, serves as Clerk to the Board of Management. Other directorships of Board members may be found at
www.soufhi-lanarkshire-college. ac. ufvabout-us/about-the-board-of-managemenbboard-members,
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Governance Statement (continued)

Board Committees

Committees of the Board generally meet four times a year, reporting fo the main Board at the immediately following
Board meseting. Committees are comprised of lay members, with each also containing the Principal and the Chair
of the Board. The exception to this arrangement is that the Principal cannot be a member of the Audit Committes.
The Chair of the Board is also not permitted to be a member of the Audit Committes. A lay member of the Board
chairs all Committees. Appropriate College officers submit reports to, and attend, Committee meetings as required.
The College also has a Remuneration Committee which mests as and when required, All Committees of the
Board have written remits, referred to as Terms of Reference. A synopsis of these remits is given below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee invites the College’s internal and external auditors to its meetings as required. The
Committee considers detailed reports together with recommendations for the improvement of the College's
systems of internal controls and management's responses and implementation plans. It also concerns itself with
monitoring the College’s arrangements for Risk Management. In addition, it receives and considers reports from
the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the College’s business and monitors adherence to the regulatary
requirements. Whilst the Chair of the Board and the Principal can attend meetings of the Audit Committee by
invitation, they are not members of that Committee. Additionally, membership of the Audit and Finance
Committees is mutually exclusive to ensure full objectivity in associated areas of remit. The Audit Committee for
201718 was comprised as follows: -

Mr R Ralston (Chair)
Mr F Hutchinson
Ms P Robertson (Resigned 19 September 2017)

Finance and Resources Committee

The Finance and Resources Committee recommends to the Board the College’s financial statements and its
annual revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to these approved budgets. The
Committee also advises the Board on overall strategy and planning for the College’s property, equipment and
estates. The Finance and Resources Committee for 2017/18 was comprised as follows: -

Mr A Kerr (acting Ghair)

Mr J Gallacher (Chair — retired 29 May 2018)
Ms C Gibb

Mr S Dillett

Mr S McKillop

Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee oversees the appointment of additional members of staff and salary award
negotiations. The Committes also consider staff development and matters concerning the terms and conditions
of Callege staff. The Human Resources Committee for 2017/18 was comprised as follows: -

Mr G McDowall (Chair)
Ms R Harkness

Ms G Stillie

Mr S McKillop

Development Committee
The Development Committee considers and directs the College’s marketing and commercial strategy and
oversees its continuing progression. The Development Committee for 2017/18 was comprised as follows: -

Ms | Johnstene {Chair)
Mr S Duffy

Ms J Carratt

Ms J Mckenzie

ir S McKillop
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Governance Statement (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising the chairs of each Committee, sets the salaries of the senior
management team of the College and reviews nominations for Board and committee membership. The
Remuneration Committee meets as necessary throughout the year and is chaired by the Vice-Chair of the Board.

Attendance at the relevant meetings throughout the year was as follows:

. Board of Management 85% (201817 73%)
. Audit 85%  (2018M7: 77%)
. Finance and Resources 88% (201817 94%)
. Human Resources 100% (20168/M17: 100%)
. Development 895% (201817 64%)

Governance Developments in the year

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of its governance. It is a condition of the Financial
Memaorandum that governing bodies comply with the principles of good governance set out in the Code of Good
Governance for Scotland's Colleges 2018 ("The Code”). This codifies the principles of good governance that exist
in colleges and promotes accountability and continuous improvement in governance.

In January 2017, Scott-Moncrieff our internal auditors, produced a report on corporate governance arrangements
at the College, focussing on the requirements of the financial memorandum between The Lanarkshire Board and
South Lanarkshire College. The report concluded that the College has adequate and effective controls in place to
comply with the additional corporate governance requirements documented within the financial memorandurm.
The arrangements or requirements have not changed since then.

Our 2014-2020 Strategic Plan details our strategic mission and strategic objectives which are aligned with the
objectives of the regional cutcome agreement between the College and The Lanarkshire Board. The strategic
plan reflects the governance arrangements with the Regional Board.

The College has a five-year financial strategy and a five-year financial forecast to 2022/23 which was approved
by the Board. The five-year financial strategy is revisited annually and incorporated within our overall strategic
plan. The figures from the approved five year financial strategy are reflected within the Financial Forecast Return
(FFR) which was submitted to SFC via the Regional Board.

The College performs an annual self-assessment, outlining performance against key targets and performance
indicators within the regional outcome agreement.

Board Effectiveness

The Board undertakes an annual self-evaluation exercise, and one separate session per year is devoted to
strategic planning and governance. In addition, and in accordance with the Code of Good Governance for
Scotland’s Colleges, an externally facilitated Board effectiveness review was undertaken and the report was
published in November 2017. The review invalved the design and issue of a self-assessment guestionnaire to all
Board Members, interviews with Board Members, facilitation of a Board effectiveness workshop, testing of the
findings emerging from the workshop and development of an action plan for improvement. This report was
distributed to The Regional Board and has been published on the College website.

Mr Andrew Kerr was appointed Chair of the Board of Management in May 2018. As part of the appointment
process, candidates were supplisd with a range of documentation, including a comprehensive coverage of internal
control and governance arrangements. This gave candidates an assurance of the financial wellbeing and
management control arrangements in place at the College. Subsequent to his appointment, Mr Kerr has extended
his enquiries in these areas including review of monitoring returns made to the Regional body and SFC, all of
which enables him to approve and sign off these financial statements.
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Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Effectiveness of Internal Control and Risk Management

The systems of internal control are designed to evaluate the nature and extent of any risks and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and econormically.

The systems are based on a framework of regular management information, administrative procedures and a
system of delegation and accountability. This includes:

. detailed budgeting processes with an annual budget approved by the board,

. regular reviews by the board and the management team of financial reports covering progress towards
financial targets;

. annual reviews and updates to Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegation and Financial Regulations;

guarterly reviews of the corporate risk register;

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the College's policies,
aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The system has been in place for the year ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements.

The Board of Management has responsibility for the College’s systemn of internal control and reviewing the
effectivenass of the systems of internal control and risk management arrangements. The Board's review of internal
control review is informed by:

. the SMT within the College who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework;

. the line management process within the College and framework of regular management information;

. the work of the internal auditors, which is directed through an audit plan agreed by the Audit Committee

and focuses on identified control risk areas. The internal auditors submit regular reports on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of internal control together with recommendations for

improvement;

. the College’s Audit Committes, which assesses the effectiveness of assurances in relation to the systems
of governance, risk management and internal contral;

. comments made by the external auditors in their management letters;

A Regional Risk Group has a remit to identify and address strategic risks which may impact the Region, as
opposed to those that may only affect the individual Regional colleges. Management from both colleges are
members of the Group. The Group reports to the Audit Committee of the Regional Strategic Board, whilst South
Lanarkshire College’s own Audit Committee and its Risk Management Group both also receive and consider the
reports produced by the Regional Group.

Data Security

There were no significant lapses of data security during the year ended 31 July 2018. During the year the College
was awarded Cyber Essentials Plus and was the first college in the United Kingdom to receive this accreditation.
Cyber Essentials is a Government-backed, industry-supported scheme to help organisations protect themselves
against commaon online threats.

Significant Issues

During the financial year to 31 July 2018 and to the date of this statement, no significant control weaknesses or
issues have arisen, and no significant failures have arisen in the expected standards for good governance, risk
management and control,

Statement of Compliance with the 2016 Code of Good Governance
The College complies with all of the principles of the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scottish Colleges, and
has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2018,

Conclusion

On the basis of the assurances provided from the sources of assurance outlined above, we can confirm that sound
systems of governance, risk management and internal control, compliant with the requirements of the 2016 Code
of Good Governance and the relevant parts of the SPFM, have operated for the year ended 31 July 2018 and up
to the date of approval of the report and financial statements.
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Remuneration and Staff Report

Introduction

The College is required to prepare and publish within its financial statements an annual Remuneration
Report under the 2017/18 Government Financial Reporting Model (FReM) issued by the Scottish
Government.

The College takes the view that as the Principal is the only member of College staff with a strategic position
within the organisation to sit on the Board of Management, only he and any non-executive members of the
Board of Management should be the subject of the Remuneration Report. The report sets out the
remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the Chief Executive Officer (Principal) and the Chair of the
Board. However, it should be noted that the Chair does not receive a salary, nor a pension as a result of
the position with the Gollege; thus there are no figures to report.

Remuneration Policy

The College has a Remuneration Committee comprising the Chair of the Board of Management and the
chairs of the committees which report to the Board. It considers the salaries of the Principal and Depute
Principal. The pay award agreed for senior members of staff, including the Principal for April 2018 was 2%.

Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of the Principal.

| Year ended 31 July 2018 Year ended 31 July 2017
' Pension Pension
. Salary Benefit Total Salary Benefit Total
| Name ___£000 £000 | £000 £000 |  £000 £7000
| Stewart McKillop | 140-145 20-25 160-165 135-140 20-25 1565-160

The Principal received no performance related pay, bonuses, salary paid in lieu of pension nor non-cash benefits
in either year. His salary at 319 July 2018 was £139,692 with a back-dated award resulting in the above banding.

Median and Range of Remuneration

The mid-point remuneration of the highest paid official in the organisation in the financial year 2017-18 was
3.6 times (2016/17 3.5 times) the median remuneration of the permanent workforce which was £38,329
(2016/17 £38,980). It should be noted that the median figure does not reflect the average salary of staff
in the organisation; the median effectively reflects the top of the lecturing scale due to the significant
nurmber of College employees who receive this.

The College pays the Glasgow Living Wage (£8.75 per hour as of April 2018) as a minimum and thus the
lowest salary expressed as an FTE is £15,925 with the highest salary being £135,692. The College
received Living Wage Accreditation in 2016/17.

Accrued Pension Benefits

Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher's Superannuation Scheme (STSS), a
defined benefit scheme, which is notionally funded and contracted out of State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Both 5T35 and LGPS are defined benefit pension schemes. This means that pension benefits can be calculated
based upon on the number of years that the person has been a member of the scheme and the accrual
rmechanism in each of these years. For both schemes, in the majority of cases, the benefits are based upon final
salary for all service to 31 March 2015 and career average earnings for benefits from 1 April 2015,

Further details may be found at www.spfo.org.uk and www.sppa.gov.uk.

Contribution rates are set annually for all employees and can be found in note 18 to the financial statements.

There is no autoratic entitiernent to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum
up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004,

22



SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

Accountability Report

Remuneration and Staff Report (continued)

Senior Officials Pension
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The accrued pension benefits
for senior officials are set out in the table below.

Name Accrued Accrued Real Real CETV | CETV | Real
pension at | lump sum | increase in  increase in [ at 31 |at 31 | increase
pension at pension | pension lump sum | July July in CETV

age at 31 | age at 31 | Year ended | year ended | 2018 2017
July 2018 | July 2018 | 31 July | 31 July
| 2018 | 2018

£°000 £'000 £'000 | £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Stewart McKillop 65 185 | 4 | 11 1477 | 1417 60

These benefits have accrued over the duration of the employee’s membership of the scheme in which time
significant contributions have been made by previous employers and the employee himself.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash Eguivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme
benefits accrued by a member at a particular paint in time.

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that age;
without exercising any option to commute pension entitement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for
the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a
consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.

In considering the accrued pension benefits figures, the following contextual information should be taken into
account:

(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and do
not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.
(ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the

scheme member have made over a period of time.

Real increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the increase in accrued
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee {including the value of any benefits transferred from
ancther pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the
year.

Staff Numbers and Related Costs

_fé‘_n_ta.ff Numbers {Gross) 201718 | 2016M7 20718 2016M7
Staff an Permanent | Numbers 248 250 Cost | £E9.420k £8,874k
contracts o |
Staff on Temporary | Numbers 100 a0 Cost | £1,522k £1,189k

| contracts -
Male staff B Mumbers 124 118

| Female staff MNumbers 224 222

Compensation for loss of office
Mo employees left under voluntary exit terms during the year and no voluntary exit payments were made.
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Facility Time

In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, the College
provided the following suppaort through paid facility time for union officials working at the College during the year
ended 31 July 2018,

Relevant union officials B
Number of employees who were relevant union | FulHime equivalent employee number

officials during the year:

3 3
Percentage of time spent on facility time .

Fercentage: | Number of employess:

0% | O

1%-00% |3

51%-99% L0

100% 0
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time -

Total cost of facility time: [ £20K

Total pay hill; | £11.349m

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time: | 0.18%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on trade unicn activities as a percentage | 15%
of total paid facility time hours:

Expenditure on consultancy
Expenditure on consultancy during the year was £3k (2016/17 - £4k).

Off-payroll Engagements
There were no off-payroll engagements during the year (2018/17 — nil).

Continuous improvement

The College is focused on achieving high sustainable performance through the dedication, capability and
professionalism of all staff. The aim is to support a culture of continuous improvement in people management
strategies and ultimately supporting the achievement of the College vision, mission, strategic aims and objectives.

Ongoing workforce planning enables the College to achieve high and sustainable performance by providing the
basis for better decision-making about the future needs of the organisation in terms of its people resources. The
College developed a 5-year Workforce Planning Strategy (2017/2021). The strategy demonstrates the College’s
commitment to aftracting, recruiting, motivating and engaging staff that can then be supported, developed and
thereby retained to ensure that the right and the best people deliver high quality leaming to students. During
2017/18 in response to increasing student numbers the permanent headcount within the lecturing staff increased
by 2 FTE.

Investors in People

The College achieved Investors in People recognition in 1997 and has continued to retain recognition since then.
At the assessment visit in 2010, the College achieved Gold Status and retained this in 2013,

In September 2015, Investors in People launched a new standard, which incorporated a new level of accreditation,
Platinum. In May 2016, South Lanarkshire College became the first College to be awarded Platinum accreditation
against the Investors in People Standard, demonstrating the ongeing commitment to high performance through
good people management, The College has committed to an annual review against the standard to ensure that it
continues to deliver as a Platinum level employer.
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Accountability Report

Remuneration and Staff Report (continued)

Training and Development
The College respects and values the contribution of all staff and wants them to achieve their full potential. To
achieve this and as part of the ongoing commitment to developing staff, the College annually programmes four
days dedicated to staff development, as well as organising ongoing staff training as appropriate and hosting an
annual All Staff Conference.

We continue to offer a varied programme on staff development days which focus on leaming and teaching,
equalities and developing skills.

In addition, there is continual staff CPD activity throughout the year and staff are encouraged to continually seek
opportunities to develop. All staff have a personal learning log that records all CPD activities undertaken.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
The College has a clear vision and strategy to promote equality, access and inclusion. This links with all aspects
of our activity, as can be demonstrated by our strategic aim to promote equality and diversity.

As a Leader in Diversity since September 2014, we are committed to eliminating unlawful discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, to advancing equality of opportunity and to fostering good relations. This recognises
an effective, all-encompassing approach to managing equality, diversity and inclusion within the College,

The success was further enhanced in the Grand Awards ceremony in January 2018 when the College came fifth
in the National Centre for Diversities Top 100 Index and the Equality Officer was awarded UK Employee of the
Year. Working with Investors in Diversity has enabled the College to move beyond legal compliance and towards
promoting and celebrating equality and diversity.

The College produced a new equality Mainstreaming Report 2017/2021 in April 2017. The report provides an
overview of the work undertaken by the College on equality, and the legislative, economic and social changes
both locally and nationally. It demonstrates the progress made in relation to the Public Sector Equality Duty under
the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Outcomes generated detail what the College plan to do, taking account of
the need to: -

- eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
- advance equality of opportunity,
- foster good relations;

During 2017/2018 the College became a Disability Confident Employer and is continuing to promote the
commitment to equality throughout the recruitment process.

The College developed a Gender Action Plan during 2016/2017 to achieve the ambition set by the Scottish
Funding Council, that by 2030 no college or university will have a gender imbalance of greater than 75% of one
gender,

The College has embraced Government initiatives to widen access and inclusion for all learners and is taking this
work forward through the Access and Inclusion Strategy, Equality Outcomes Action Plan and the Gender Action
Flan.

The Equality Group is chaired by the College Principal and has student and staff representation. This group takes
its membership from across the College and meets on a regular basis to examine and consider all equality related
issues and act as a channel of communication where issues affecting staff or students can be raised and
addressed or referred to appropriate bodies for action.
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&Ecuuntability Report

Remuneration and Staff Report (continued)

We host an annual Equality & Choices Event which is run in conjunction with the Students' Association. A wide
range of organisations attend the College, with information and activities available for students and staff.

In February 2016, we opened the doors to the first zero energy building in the UK. With advice from the local
Accassibility Forum, the building was designed to ensure that it is fully inclusive and accessible.

The College is dedicated to raising awareness and improving visibility of LGBTI people and was delighted to
achieve the LGBT Youth Charter of Rights Foundation award. \We are committed to supporting students and staff
to ensure there are appropriate support mechanisms in place, and that everyone is valued and included, We are
proud to be working towards the LGET Charter of Rights. Demonstrating that we take LGBTI equality seriously,
that discrimination will be challenged, and that we have sfrong policies and procedures in place. We have fully
accessible toilets and changing facilities in the New Annexe and Main Campus. We host a number of events and
activities during the academic session to support and promote the LGBTI community.

This year, in partnership with the Student Association we held a 'Purple Friday' to coincide with LGETI History
Maonth, The College was decorated in in purple, we proudly displayed our LGBTI Equality banner, and staff and
students had the opportunity to join in the fun by wearing purple ties, badges and clothes. We had a number of
organisations on hand to provide guidance, information and support to those individuals who wanted to find out
more. There was also a tremendous amount of student engagement with Beauty Therapy and Media Make-up
students providing purple nails and faces with Photography students capturing all the fun of the day. We
participated in the Glasgow Pride event this year with students and staff signed up to show their support.

Health and Wellbeing
The Health and Wellbeing of staff and students remains a strong focus.

We continue to host our annual Health & Dignity week which is run in conjunction with the Students Association.
This is another opportunity for a wide range of organisations fo attend the College with information and activities
for students and staff. Included in the event were Health MOT's for staff camied out by HNC Care and
Administrative Practice Students and Wintar Flu Vaccinations for staff amongst a variety of other activities,

We remain committed to supporting and improving the mental health of our staff and students. We provide
mindfulness classes fo staff and students on a weekly basis during term time and continue to have a number of
ASIST trained staff. Our Mental Health working group meets on a regular basis to discuss any concemns raised
and ensure they are addressed.

The College was proud to achieve the Investors in People Health and Wellbeing Award in 2016. During 2017/18
we worked closely with our catering provider to ensure healthy options are always available to staff and students.
We now provide staff with a slimming class that meets on a weekly basis and are continuing with the
runningfwalking group and circuits classes on a weekly basis for staff facilitated by a professional personal trainer,

Staff absence for year 2017/18 was 5.96% (2016/17 5.08%).
Equality Policy
The South Lanarkshire College ethos statement, 'We believe in equality and diversity' confirms the

commitment to placing this key issue at the forefront of all the College’s work,

As a service provider and an employer the College is committed to mainstreaming equality and aims to
constantly promote equality in its work, and to strive to prevent discrimination of any kind.

The aim is to provide fair and equal opportunities to all learners, staff, stakeholders and pariners. The College

welcomes learners and staff from all backgrounds and actively seeks to promote equality and to eliminate
discrimination harassment or victimisation.

26



SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

"Accountability Report

Remuneration and Staff Report (continued)

South Lanarkshire College takes full account of the protected characteristics as defined in the Equality Act
2010.

The Accountability Report on pages 15 to 27 was approved on behalf of the Board of Management on 27"
Movember 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Andre Ke;'r — Chair of the Board of Management
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Independent auditor's report to the members of the Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College,
the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of
Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to have responsibiliies to
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements

Ve have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of South Lanarkshire College for the
year ended 31 July 2018 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of
Principal Accounting Polices, the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes
in Reserves, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:

= give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 18982
and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs
as at 31 July 2018 and of its surplus for the year then ended;

e« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts {Scotland)
Regulations 2006 {as amended).

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the
UK (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 15As (UK) require us to report
to you where:

= the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

s«  the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of the Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College,
the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament {continued)

Responsibilities of the Board of Management for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Managements Responsibilities, the Board of
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a frue and fair view in accordance
with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is responsible for assessing the college’s ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Other information in the annual report and accounts

The Board of Management is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The other
information comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of the remuneration
and staff report, and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the
Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements in accordance with ISAs (UK), our responsibility is to read
all the other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income

Opinion on reqularity

In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or
applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.

Responsibilities for regularity
The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are

responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.

28



SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

Independent auditor's report to the members of the Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College,
the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament (continued)

Report on other requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland

In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scoltish
Funding Council.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder
by the Scottish Funding Council; and

« The information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared
in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

» the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in agreement
with the accounting records; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Lucy Nutley
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

87 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh
EH12 5HD

L* December 2018

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000.
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Statement of Principal Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice
(50RF) 2015: 'Accounting for Further and Higher Education’ and the 2017118 Government Financial Reporting
Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government and in accordance with Financial Reparting Standards (FRS
102). The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the public benefit requirements of FRS102.
They conform to relevant parts of the Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM), the Accounts Direction and other
guidance issued by the Scottish Funding Council,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention maedified by the revaluation of land and
buildings.

The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards as adapted or interpreted
for the public sector context. Where the FReM is contradicted by the SORP, the SORF has taken precedence.
The particular policies adopted by the College in dealing with iterns that are considerad material to the financial
statements are set out below.

Income recognition

Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
when the goods or senvices are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract have been satisfiad.

Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure and credited to the Statement of Income and Comprehensive
Expenditure over the period in which students are studying.

Investment incame is credited to the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure on a receivable basis.

Funds the College receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Grant Funding

Governmeant revenue grants including Funding Council block grant are recognised in income over the periods in
which the College recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a
government grant is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors
due within one year and due after maore than one year as appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and
performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Donations and endowments

Mon-exchange transactions without performance related conditions are donations and endowments. Donations
and endowments with donor imposed restrictions are recognised in income in the SOCIE at the point when the
College is entitled to the funds. They are subsequently refained within a restricted reserve until such time that
expenditure is incurred in line with such restrictions at which point the income is released to unrestricted reserves
through a reserves transfer. Donations with no restrictions are recognised in income in the SOCIE when the
College is entitled to the funds.

Investment income and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which it arises and as

either restricted or unrestricted income according to the terms of the restriction applied to the individual endowment
fund.
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Statement of Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
There are four main types of donations and endowments identified within reserves:

1. Restricted donations - the donor has specified that the donation must be used for a particular objective;

2. Unrestricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be permanently invested
to generate an income stream for the general benefit of the College;

3. Restricted expendable endowments - the donor has specified a particular objective other than the
purchase or construction of tangible fixed assets, and the College has the power to use the capital;

4. Restricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be permanently invested
to generate an income stream to be applied to a particular objective.

Capital grants

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset. Other capital grants
are recognised in income when the College is entitlied to the funds subject ta any performance related conditions
being met.

Fixed Assets

The College's buildings are specialised buildings and are revalued to fair value. They are revalued on a three-
year cycle unless there is evidence of a material movement in them. Buildings are depreciated over the
expected useful economic life to the College of 50 years, but land is not depreciated. Buildings erected as
specialised teaching facilities such as the College's eco-house, are depreciated over 10 years.

Assets costing less than £10,000 are written off to revenue in the period of purchase. However, individual
assets whose costs fall below the threshold but are of a similar type are grouped.

Where assets are purchased with the aid of government capital grants, they are capitalised and depreciated
per the rates shown below. Government capital grants relating to specific capital expenditure on depreciable
assets are treated as a deferred credit and are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected
useful lives of the assets to which the grants relate.

Buildings under censtruction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architect’s certificates and other
direct costs incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of fixed assets is carried out at each reporting date.

Other fixed assels are carried at depreciated histarical cost, which is used as a proxy for fair value. Depreciated
historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate than revaluing other assets, as it is common for such assets to
reduce in value, rather than increase, as they are utilised by the College.

Surpluses arising on the revaluation of the College's properties are transferred to the revaluation reserve.
Additional depreciation on the revalued amount of these assets is transferred from revaluation reserve to
unrestricted reserve together with any surplus or deficit on disposal.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset to the residual value of the asset where
appropriate. Depreciation rates used are as follows;

Land Land is not depreciated

Buildings 2% per annum straight line to a residual value
Furniture and Fittings 25% per annum straight line

Computer Equipment 25% per annum straight line

Plant and Equipment 4% and 10% per annum straight line
Eco-House 10% per annum straight line

Motor Vehicles 33% per annum straight line
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Statement of Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Accounting for Retirement Benefits

All members of staff have the aption of joining a pension scheme. The schemes currently open to members of
staff are the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (STSS) and the Strathclyde Pension Fund (SPF). These
schemes are defined benefit schemes which are externally funded.

Full provision has been made for those pension costs which do not arise from external defined benefit schemes.
Defined Benefit Schemes

Defined benefit schemes are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution schemes. Under defined
henefit schemes, the College's obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former employees, and
actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more or less than expected) and investment risk (that refurns on assets set aside
to fund the benefits will differ from expectations) are borne, in substance, by the College. The College should recognise
a liability for its obligations under defined benefit schemes net of plan assets. This net defined benefit liability is
measured as the estimated amount of benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods, discounted to determine its present value, less the fair value (at bid price) of scheme assets. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Where the calculation results in
a net asset, recognition of the asset is limited to the extent to which the College is able to recover the surplus either
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.

Strathclyde Pension Fund

The Strathclyde Pension Fund is a pension scheme providing benefits based on pensicnable pay. The assets and
liabilities of the scheme are held separately from those of the College. Pension scheme assets are measured
using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.
Confributions to the Scheme are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the Age
Aftained Method. Variations from regular cost are spread over the expected average remaining working lifetime
of members of the schemes, after making allowances for future withdrawals. The amount charged to the SQCIE
represents the service cost expected to arise from employee service in the current period.

Scottish Teachers’ Superannuation Scheme

The College participates in the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme pension scheme providing benefits based
on pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the College. The College is unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and
therefore, as required by FRS102, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result,
the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions payable to the scheme in
respect of the period.

Employment benefits

Short-term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as an expense in the
year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the
additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlerment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they

are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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Statement of Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liahilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

Taxation

The College has been entered into the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1)
of the Charities and Trustee Investment {Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a Charity registered in Scotland.
The College is recognised by HM Revenue and Customs as a charity for the purposes of section 505, Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1888 and is exempt from Corporation Tax and Capital Gains Tax on its charitable activities.
The College receives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.

Maintenance of Premises
The costs of maintaining College premises are charged to the SOCIE in the year in which they are incurred.
Operating Leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term. Any lease premiums
or incentives are spread over the minimum lease term.

Reserves

Reserves are classified as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted endowment reserves include balances which,
through endowment to the College, are held as a permanently restricted fund which the College must hold in
perpetuity. Other restricted reserves include balances where the donor has designated a specific purpose and
therefore the College is restricted in the use of these funds.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised in the financial statements when:

a. the College has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

b. itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
c. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an cutflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the College a possible asset whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
College.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recegnised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements,

Changes in accounting policy

There were no changes in accounting policies in the year.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Income

Scottish Funding Council Granis
Tuition Fees and Education Contracts
Other Income

Danafions and endowments

Investment Income

Total income

Expenditure

Staff Costa

Other Operating Expenses
Intarest and Cther Finance Costs
Depreciation

Total expenditure
Surplus hefore other gains/(losses)

Exceptional gain on release of Lannartz balance
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets

Surplus before tax

Taxation
Surplus for the year

Actuarial gain in respect of pension scheme

Unrealized surplus on revaluation of land and buildings

Total comprehensive income for the year

Reprasentad by,
Restricted comprehensive income for the year
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year

Allitams of incorme and expenditure relate o continuing activities.

Mote

N dw L RS —

o w e ;D

14

11

10

Yaar ended Yaar ended
st July 2018 3st July 2017
£000 £000
12,856 12,218

2821 2421
191 215

- 20

i 2
16,868 14 877
11,349 10,370
3,480 3472
20 a5

924 8926
15,833 14,862
36 15

292 -
326 15
328 15
1,877 1480
1,785 -
4,000 205
4,000 205
4,000 205

The above Stalement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared under the FESHE SORP which does not permit the inclusion of any non-cash budget
for depreciation. Mote 26 shows our adjusted operating pesition including this depraciation budget,

The nates an pageas 39 1o 52 and accounting policies on pages 31 to 24 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

Balanca at 1 August 2016

Surplus from the income & expenditure staiement
Actuarial gain in respect of pension scheme
Transfar belwasn revaluation and unrasiricied rassra
Release of restricted capital funds spent in year

l'otal cemprehansiva Income Tor the yaar

Reallocation between reserves on completion of project

Balance at 1 August 2017

Surplus from the income & expenditure statement
Actuarial gain in respect of pension scheme
Unrealisad surplus on revaluation of land and buildings
Transfer between revaluation and unresfricted resernve
Release of restricted capital funds spent in year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Calance at 31 July 2018

Income & expenditure resarna Ravaluation

Restricted  Unrestricted regerve Total
£O00 £000 £000 £000

- (433) 5,089 4 656

- 15 - 15

18 180 - 190

o o (2] 5

- 207 (2] 205

- [226) 5,087 4,861

- 328 - 328

" 1.877 = 1,877

- 1,795 1,795

= z (2 =

- 2,207 17593 4.000

- 1,981 5,580 8,861
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BALANCE SHEET

Nan-current Assets
Fixed Assals

Current Assets
Stocks

Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalants

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due within One Year
MNet Current Liabilities

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Less: Creditors - Amounts Falling Dus After One Year
Less: Provisions for Liakilities

Met Assets Excluding Pension Liahility
Met Pension Liability

TOTAL MET ASSETS

Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

Income and Expenditure Account - unrestricted
Income and Expenditura Account - restricted

TOTAL RESERVES

Mot

10

12
13
19

14

15
16

18

The Financial Stalements on pages 31 to 52 were approved by the Beard of Managemeant and autharised

far issue on 27 Moverrnber 2008, and signed on il behalf by

A

Androw Kerr - Chair of the Board of Management

Stewart McKillop - Principal

Az at Az at
st July 2018 st July 2017
£000 £000
34115 33,045
8 2
BY8 733
612 145
1,618 BB6
2,383 2,802
(B65) (1,918)
33,250 31,129
22 6524 22978
513 548
10,213 7,603
1,352 2742
8.861 4,861
6,880 5,087
1,981 [226)
8,861 4,861
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st.July 2018

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Met Cash Inflow from Operating Activities
Surplus for the financial year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of tangible assets
Releass of Lennartz creditor
Increase in creditors dus within one year
Increass in debtors
Interest payahle
Amartigation of deferred capital grants
Decrease in pension provision
Interest receivable
Pension cost less contributions payable
Cash from operations
Income taxes paid
Met cash generated from opaerating activities

Cash flows from investing activitiies
Interest recaived
Purchases of tangible fixed assels
Met cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of Lennartz craditor
Govarnment capital grants received
Met cash flow from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended
st July 2018

Yaar ended
J1st July 2017

£000 £000
328 15
924 925
(292) ¢
27 115
(185) (81)
80 a5
{719} {684)
(35) (3o
(1) 2
407 307
554 560
554 GED

1 P
(199) {165)
(198 {163}
i3} (3
(88) (370)
200 140
111 (233
467 264
145 {11g)
B2 145
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Slatemeants for the year ended 315t July 2018

Motes to the Financial Statements

1. SCOTTISH FUNDING COUNCIL GRANTS

Yaar anded Year ended
st July 2018 st July 2017
£000 £000
SFC recurrant grant 11,150 10,510
SFC non recurrenl grants - other 604 6549
Release of governmant capital grants Mote 17 L l2) 57D
FE and HE Childcara 493 475
Tatal 12 BAEG 12,219
2, TWITION FEES ANMD EDUCATION CONTRACTS
Yaar anded Year ended
st July 2018 st July 2017
£000 £000
UK Higher Education students 1,151 1,038
Mon EU Higher Education students 71 67
LK, Further Fducation sludents fit=16] 47
SDS contracks are 286
Other contracts a24 133
Total 2 821 2421
3. OTHER INCOME
Yeaar anded Year ended
st July 2018 st July 2017
£000 £000
Other revenus grants 10 47
Other income 71 58
Release of EROF doferad capital grant Mote 17 110 109
Total o 191 21 fg__l
4.  DONATIONS
Year ended Yeaar andad
sl July 2018 st July 2017
FO00 £000
Dionations wilh restrictions 20
Unrestricted donations —
Total - 20
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statementis for the year ended 31st July 2018

MNotes to the Financial Statements

§  INVESTMENT INCOME

Yoar ended Year ended
Slat July 2018 Jst July 2017
£000 £O00
Bank interest received 1 2
STAFF
The average weekly number of persons (including sanlor post holders)
employed by the College during the year, expressed as full ime cquivalents was:
Year ended Year ended
st July 2018 Ist July 2017
Nurnbrer MNumber
Teaching depariments 139 140
Teaching services 47 43
Administration and central services 38 KT
Pramisaz 26 24
Other support services i 7
Total 258 256
Analysed as;
Staff on permanent contracts 225 225
Staff on temporary contracts 33 31
Total 258 256
Staff costs for the above persons: Year ended Year endad
st July 2018 st July 2017
FOO0 £0HI0
Wages and salaries &8.712 2,020
Social security costs 558 772
Other pension expensea - Employar conlibutlons 1372 1,271
Provigions = -
Staffing cosis prior to FRS102 pensions adjusimeant 10,942 10,063
FRS 102 pensions adjusiment 407 07
Total 11,348 10,370
Teaching departments 6,857 5,184
Teaching services 1,345 1,401
Administration and cantral servicos 1,808 1,608
Premises G689 G54
Other support services 243 ot
10,842 10,063
FRS 102 pensions adjustimant 407 - T
Total 11,348 10,370
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statamants for the year ended 31st July 2018

Motes to the Financial Statements

G,

STAFF (continued)

Indexation
Caleulalions on fulure pension increases are linked 1o the Consumer Price Index {CPI).

Salary award
The Collage has subscribed to the national collecliva bargaining arrangements in Scotland which cover
support stall and lecturing staff, other than those oulwith the scope of the agreement. Awards wors
made to suppaorl slaff and lecturing staff for the years from 15t April 2017 and 15t April 2018 In line with the
agreemants reached by the National Joint Negatialing Committee during the year. All awards have
haan acoounted for in the financial year to 31st July 2015,

Ex-members of siail who receive pensions via the Collage's payroll received the stalutory increase as per
the instruction from SPPA.

Overseas travel
The cost of overseas traval undertaken by College staff in fhe year was £4k (20168/17 Enil).

Analysls of Staff Costs:

Yaar gnded Year ended

Flal July 2018 31st July 2017

£000 EHI0

Slaff on permaneant contracts 5,420 2,874

Slall on temporary contracts 1,622 1,188

10,942 10,063

FRS 102 pensions adjustmeant 407 any
Total i 11,349 10,370 :

SEMIOR POSTHOLDERS' EMOLUMENTS
Emoluments of the Board of Management
The members of the Board of Management, other than the Principal and staff members, did nof receive
any payment from the College olher than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expensas incuried
in the course of their duties.

Emoluments of the Principal
Emaoluments of the postholdar during the year were as follows:

Year cnded Year anded
st July 2018 st July 2017
FO00 £000
Ramuncration 141 137
Benelits in kind e %
141 T
Employer's pansion contributions 24 24

The Principals salary as at 31st July 2018 was £139,652; emoluments above include cumulalive back pay of £2,510.

The Principal is ihe only employee deemed to fall under the definition of "key managament
personnel”. This is reflected in the analysis contained wilhin the Remuneration and Staff Raporl.

Ihe Principal is an crdinary member of the Scotfish Teachars' Superannuation Schema. Tha College's
contribution o the Schame Is paid at the same percenlage rale as for other members of academic staff.
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financlal Statements for the year endad 31s1 July 2015

Motes to the Financial Statements

7. SENIOR POSTHOLDERS' EMOLUMENTS (contlnued)

Emoluments of higher paid members of staff

The number of higher paid stalf, Including the Principal, wiho recaived emoluments in excess of 260,000
excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind ware in the following ranges

£60,001 to £70,000
£20,001 to £90,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£130,001 to £140,000
£140,001 to £150,000

Year ended Year ended
F1st July 2018 st July 2017
Murmbes Mumber

4 2

- 1

1 =

1

1 o &

[ 4

Flve of the 2018 employess are members of the College Senior Management Team, with the ather being a

manager outwith the Senior Management Team.

Emaluments of these higher paid members of staff (including Ihe Principal) were made up as follows:

(for the academic year to 31 July)

Salaries
Pensions contributions
Tolal amoluments

#.  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching dapariments

Teaching supporl

Adminisiralicn and central servicas
Premises

Ofher expensos

FE and HE Childcare

Total

Administration and central services Include:
Auditors' Remuneration {including irmecoverable WAT)
- Inlermal audit
- External audit
Rantals under operating leases - egquipment

9. INTEREST PAYABLE

Bank interasl
Met charge on penslon scheme liabililies
Total

£a0a £000

489 351

85 G2

574 413

Yaar ended Wear anded

3lsl July 2018

31st July 2017

£000 £000
677 663
124 BO
779 784
1,156 1,182
2581 273
403 ATH
3480 3472
£a00 £000
20 20
14 14
108 a7
Year ended Year anded
Fst July 2013 Atst July 2017
£a0g £000
3 3
77 92
&0 a5




SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE

Firancial Statements for the yvear ended 31st July 2018

Motes to the Financial Statements

10. FIXED ASSETS

GCost ar valuation:
At 1zt August 2017
Addifions

At 31st July 2018

Depreclation:
At 15t August 2017
Frowided during fhe period
Eliminated on revaluation
At 31st July 2018

Net Book Value
At 31st July 20138
At 1 August 2017

Financed by:
SFC granls
EL capital granis

Owen funds
At 31st July 2018

Tha Mal Book Values of the above aszets
should they still be shown at coat would be:

Eco- Fumiture Computer  Plant & Mator
Land Buildings House & Fitfings Equipmeant Equipment  WVehicles Tuakal
L0 FO0g L0000 £a0g Loog £aan £oan £000
1,000 33,697 135 JB2 574 2,29% 40 38,101

= BT - a 124 - - 190

_ 1000 337E4 135 FT0 12h] 2,293 40 38,300

H 2444 55 334 501 1,649 40 5,056

- G&Y 23 12 48 164 - 9¥4q

T [1.735} {10) # - n A 11,795)

- 1,318 101 348 544 1,833 40 4,188

1,000 32,445 34 24 1449 460 n 34,115

1,000 31,253 47 28 73 G4 - 33,045

679 17,678 14 1249 212 18,7117

264 4,274 - - - - - 4,528

933 21,952 14 129 212 23,245

67 10,486 34 bl 20 248 - 10,870

1,000 32,445 34 24 1449 460 = 34,115
934 25634 34 24 149 460 - 27338

Land and buildings were indepandently valued as at 31 July 2018 for the purposes of the financial statemanis by
external valuers Gerald Eve LLP, & regulated firm of Chartered Surveyors, The valuation was prepared in
accordance with the requirements of RICS Valuation - Global Standards, July 2017 edifion as publishad by the Royal
Institution of Charered Surveyors (RICS) and FRS 102, The valuation was undertaken on a fair value basis |, with

specialised proparias valued by reference to depreciated replacement cost

If land and buildings financed by exchequer funds are disposed of, the Ceollege may be required, under the terms of the Financial
Memorandum 1o surender the proceeds to SFC.
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SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Slaterments for the year ended 315t July 2018

Motes to the Financial Statements

11. TAXATION

The Board doos not believe that the College |s llable for any Comporafion Tax arlsing out of its activilies during

the years andad 31st July 2097 and 31st July 2018,

12. STOCKS

Stocks for resale
Cther slocks
Total

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivablas

Cther receivahlas

European funding

Prepayments and accruad Income
Total

14. CREDITORS - Amounts falling due within one year

Bank overdraft

Trade payables

Other taxes and soclal sccurity costs

Cther payablas

Lennartz creditor

Dieferred income - restricted

Deferred income - Govemment capital grants (see note 17)
Meocruals

Bursaries and Access funds for future disbursamenl

Total

As at A al
sl July 2018 Fst July 2017
£a00 £000
4 4
4 4
e 8 B
M at Az al
Fst July 2018 st July 2007
£000 £000
303 208
5 i
451 AQD
139 118
a8 733
= ==
Mg at Az al
Fst July 2018 st July 2017
£000 £
103 108
200 181
165 3m
= ATHE
622 Haz
7149 84
463 426
111 122
2,383 2 802

The Collega successfully applied for VAT relief under the Lennarz mechanism and received a proporlion

of irrecoverabla VAT on the construction costs of the main campus building. £2,475,000 was recaived which
was repayabla 1o HM Revenue amd Custems over 10 years with the final repayment mada in January 2015,
The Lennarlz mechanism required annual calculations to defermine the quantum of the repayment for the yaar
and as il ranspired that £292,000 of tha original advance did nof require 10 be repaid to HWREC, this amount

was releasad Lo the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year and has been shown as an exceptional item.

SFC make non-recurrent grants to the Collage with restrictions on usa. Thase are generally in respacl
of estates and maintenance reguirements. The College has carriad forward an element of this allocation

and it is shown within "Deferred Income - Restrlcled” above and will be wused for future projects.

15. CREDITORS - Amounts falling due after ane year

Deferrad income - Government capilal grants (ses note 17}
Total

Az at Az al

et July 2018 AstJuly 2017
£a0a £000

22,524 22 0978
22,624 22 978
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Motes to the Financial Statements

16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Pensions costs arising from early retirements in prior years

Year ended Year endad

Hat July 20148 st July 2017

£000 E000

At 1 August 2017 548 548
Charged to SOCIE . 30
Expenditure during the year (35) {30)
At 31st July 2018 513 548

This provision is in respact of future pension liabllities arsing from early retirals in prior years, The pension liability

has been revalued using actuarial tables supplied by SFC. The net interest rate applied was 0.0% (2017:0.0%).

17. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT CAPITAL GRANTS

At 1=t August 2017

Additicnal grants

Release to Income and Expenditure Account
At 3st July 20138

Dizclosed as follows;
Armount falling due within one yaar
Amount falling due after ona year

Source of Deferred Capital Grant
Sourced from SFE

ERDF Grant

Total

Analysis of Release
Funded via SFC Grants & capital contributions Mote 1
Furiied via ERDF Grants Mote 3

Capital funding received from SFC which is usead to purchase capital assots is recorded as Government

£000

23,662
300
(719

23,243

718
22 524
23,743
e

18,716
4,527

23,243

609
110
14

Capilal Grants. Grants are then amorised at the sama rala as the depreciation rate which is being applied
o the relevant assets. Monies received from the Eurcpaan Union (EUY In the form of European Regional

Development Fund grants have been freaied similarly.
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S0OUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st July 2018

MNotes to the Financial Statements

18.

PENSIONS

The twe principal pension schemas for the College's staff are the Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (Scoffand),

"STSS", which is operated by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency, and the Local Government Superannuation Scheme,
"cPF*. Both STSS and SPF are defined benefit schemes, with STSS providing benefits for teaching staff and SPF providing
banefits for other staff of the Collega.

For suppaort staff, the conbribution payable by the College throughout the financial year to 21 July 2018 was 19.3% of
pensionable salary. Support staff contribution rates were in a range of batween 5.5% and 12.0% depending upen
salary and terms and conditions of service. The same rates were in place for the previous financial year,

For lecturing staff, the contribution payable by the Collegs is 17.2% of pansionable salariss. Employes contribution rates for
lecturing staff are based upon a syatam of fiered contributions ranging fram 7.2% to 11.9%, depending upon salary level.

The total employer pension payments far the College were: year anded year anded
FlstJuly 2018 FlstJuly 2017
£000 £000
Contributions to 3TSS 922 852
Contributions to SPF 450 418
1,372 1,271

The analysis of all amounts charged to the Statement of Comprahensive Income (SOCH) is shown below:

year ended year ended
Fst July 2018 3=t July 2017
£000 EOOG
Charged to staff costs
Current service costs 1,779 1,578
Past service costs - =
Total charged to staff costs 1,779 1,678
Credit/{charge) for net return on pension scheme
Infarest income {321) (245)
Intarast cost 308 EXT
Met interest charged 77 a9z
(Cradit)fcharge to other comprehengive income
Return on assets (481) (1,138)
Changes in demographic assumptions 48 s
Other experience (3286) -
Gaine and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (1,118) 948
Actuarial gain (1,877) (190)
Total {creditifcharge to the SOCI {21) 1,480

Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme

South Lanarkshire Collage participates in the Scotlish Teachars' Superannuation Schemea. The scheme is an
unfunded statutory public service pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK Government. The scheme
is financed by payments from employers and from those current employess who are members of the scheme and
paying contributions at progressively higher marginal rates based on pensionable pay, as specified in the
regulations. The rate of employer contributions is set with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by tha
scheme actuary. The last four-yearly valuation was undertaken in 2015 on data as at 31 March 2012 and set
contribution rates from 1 September 2015 to 31 March 2019, The next revision to the employer rate is expected to
take effect from 1 April 2019,

The Caollege has no liability for other employers obligations to the multi-employer scheme.

b5 the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus to distribute on the wind-up of the scheme or
withdrawal from the schems.

Tha scheme is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The scheme has been treated for accounting
purposes as a defined contribution scheme as the College is unable to identify ils share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the scheme.

The employer contribution rate was sel al 17.2% of pensionable pay from 1 September 2015, it was previously
14.9%. While the employee rate applied is a varisble, it will provide an actuarial yield of 9.6% of pensionable pay.
At the last valuation a shortfall of £1.3 billion was idenfified in the notional fund which will b2 repaid by a
supplamentary rate of 4.5% of employers pension contibutions for fifteen years from 1 April 2015, although the
increase was nol implemented until 1 September 2015, This contribution is included in the 17.2% employers’
contribution rate.



SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Staternents for the year ended 31st July 2018

Motes to the Financial Statements

18.

PENSIONS (continued)

The total employer contributions received for the Scoltish Teachers' scheme in the year to 31 March 2014 were
£346.3 million. South Lanarkshire College level of participation in the scheme is 0.2% based on the proportion of
employer contributions paid in 2013/14. This is tha latest such information we have on the scheme.

Local Government Superannuation Scheme

The College participates in the Strathclyde Pension Fund, which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme where
contributions payabla are held in a trust separately from the College.

The main results and assumptions of the mest recent valuation of the Strathclyde Pension Fund are as follows:

Valuation dale 3st March 2017
Valuation method Projected Linit Meathad
Market value of the assets at the date of the last formal valuation £19,689 million
Pazt service liabilities £18,761 millian
Surplus £839 millicn
Funding level 105%
Funding basis
{% pa)
Discount rate: post-rafirement 3.30%
Discount rate: pre-retirement 3.704%
Salary scale increases per annum 3.60%
Benefit increase assumpfiion {SP1) 2.40%

An actuarial valuation of the Fund is carried out every three years.

Disclosures under FRS 102 of Defined Benefit Scheme
The following disclosures are required under FRS 102,

The valuation was updated by the actuary on an FRS 102 basis as at 31st July 2018 and 21 July 2017.
and the major assumptions used in the valuation and the updates wera:
Update at Update at
31 July 2018 31 July 2017

Inflation / pensien increase rate 2.4% 2.5%
Salary increases 3.6% 4.5%
Discount rate 2 8% 27%

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of pessible actuarial
assumptions which, due to the timescale covered, may nol necessarily be barne oulin practice.

Maortality

Life expectancy is based upon the Fund's VitaCurves specifically tailored to the membership profile aof the Fund.
Improvemants have been appliad that are in line with the CMI 2012 assuming the rate of longevity improvemsnts
have reached & peak and will converge to a long term rate of 1.5% per annum for males and 1.25% for fermales.
Tha assumed life expactancies at age 65 are shown balow.

Male Female
Current pensionears 214 237
Future pensiocners 234 258

Liakilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method which assesses the future liabilities of
the fund discounted to thair present valus. The valuations at 31 July 2018 have been prepared by Hymans
Roberison LLP.
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18.

PENSIOMNS (continued)

The movement in the funded part of the net pension liability for the year ended 31 July 2018 was as follows:

Fair value of employer assats

Presenl value of funded liabilities
Prazent value of unfunded liahilities
Opening position as at 1 August 2017
Current service cost

Interest income on plan assets

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest

Total defined benefit cost recognised in SOCIE
Employea contributions

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Total cash flows

Expected closing position

Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

Other experience

Return on assels excluding amounts incleded in net interast
Taotal remeasurements in other comprehensive income

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of funded liabilities
Presant valua of unfundad liabilities
Closing position as at 31 July 2018

Information about the defined benefit obligation

Active mambers
Deferred members
Pangioner mambers
Total

* as at 31 March 2013

Year ended 31 July 2018

Met (Liability)/
Aszets  Obligations Asszet
£000 £000 g0
11,732 - 11,732
- (14,480} [14,469)
- (5} i5)
11,732 (14,474} (2,742}
- (B57) (857}
Az & 321
- (401} (401}
321 {401) (80)
321 (1,258) {937)
138 (138) -
450 - 450
{247} 247 -
341 109 450
12,394 (15,623) (3,229)
= (48) (48)
- 1.118 1,118
= 326 326
481 - 481
481 1,396 1,877
12,875 12,875
{14,227) {14,227
12,875 (14,227} (1,352)
Liahility split at 31 July
2018 Welghted averags duration
£000 %  atlast formal valuation *
Q72T G8.4% 24.4
1,966 13.8% 256
2534 17.8% 1.7
14 227 100.0% 217
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18. PENSIONS (continued)
Tha mavement in the funded part of the net pension liability for the year ended 31 July 2017 was as follows:

Year ended 31 July 2017

Net (Liability)/
Assets  Obligations Asset
£000 000 £000
Fair value of employer assats 10,055 - 10,085
Present value of funded liabilities - {12,610} {12,610)
Present value of unfunded liabilities _ - {5) (5}
Opening position as at 1 August 2016 10,055 (12,615) [2.560)
Current service cost . {722) 1722}
Inferest income on plan assets 245 - 245
Interast cost on defined benafit obligation - (310) _ (310}
Total net interest 245 (310) {65}
Tatal defined benefit cost recognised in SOCIE 245 (1,032) (7T87)
Employee contributions 127 (127) -
Employer cantributions 415 - 415
Benefits paid (248) 248 -
Total cagh flows _ 204 121 45
Expected closing position 10,594 (13,526) (2,932)
Changes in demographic assumptions - - -
Changes in financial assumptions - (948} (948)
Qiher experisnce - - -
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net intenest 1,138 - 1,138
Total remeasurements in other comprehensive income R (848) 190
Fair value of employer assets 11,732 - 11,732
Present value of funded liakiliies & {14,459) {14,469)
Present value of unfunded liabilities R 5 {5) (5}
Closing position as at 31 July 2017 11,732 (14,474) (2,742)
Projected defined benefit cost for the year to 31 July 2019
Assets  Obligations Met (liability)asset
£000 o000 £000 % of pay
Prajected current service cost (821) (B821) {35.3%)
Interest income on plan assets 385 365 15.7%
Interest cost on defined bensfit obligations {408} (408) {17.5%)
Total included in SOCIE s (1,229) (364) (37.1%)

The valuation estimates that the Employer's contribufion for the year to 31 July 2019 will be approx. £44%,000,

The above figures should be treated as estimates and may need to be adjusted Lo lake account of:
* any material events such as curtailments, settlements or the employers discontinuance of the employers participation in the Fund;

* any changes lo accounting practicss;

* any changes to the Scheme benefit or member contribution rates: andfor

* any full funding valuation thal may be carried out on the employers behalf.

The monetary amount of the projected service cost for the year to 31 July 2019 may be adjusted to take account of actual
pensiohable payroll for the year.

Sensititivity analysis
The sensilivifies regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Change in assumptions at 31 July 20138 Approximate % increase to Approximate monetary
Employer Liability impact (£000)

0.5% decrease in real discount rata 12% 1,671

0.5% increass in the salary increase rate 2% 292

0.5% increase in pension increase rate 10% 1,353
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19. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS
Al 1st August Cash Other AL st July
2017 Flows Changes 2018
L0050 £000 £a0o £O00
Cash in hand and al bank 145 467 612
Bank cverdraft : - -
Total 145 45T - 512
20. LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Total rentals payable for equipment under oparating leases
year endad year ended
3 July 2018 31 July 2017
£000 Lopo
Future minimum lease payments dus
Within one year L] 98
Between 1 and § yoars 111 138
After 5 years = .
214 . 236

21. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There wera no capilal commitments st the year end or at the prior year end.

22. CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES
There were no conlingent liabifities at the year end or at the prior year end.

23. POST BALANGE SHEET EVENTS
There are no items occurring after the year end which require disclosura.

24. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

With the College acoounling reference date reflacting the end of the anadamic yoar, there are very faw
estimates and judgements impacting upon the financial statemeants. Thera Iz very litile teaching activity
spanning the year end and the Callege is nol involved in research aclivity. Funding from SFC is normally in
respect of fhe academic year to 31 July. Stock is estimated at a naminal figure of £8k wilh all academic
purchasing being held back unlil August and the start of the now academic year. & small provigion for bad debls

iz adjusted annually based upon the profile of the ralevant deblors,

The quantification of the final salary penslon scheme involves assumptions and judgements as detailed in note
18, We laka guidance from SFC and Hymans Robertson LLP when setting assumplions and the actuarial
yaluztion of the Stratholyde Penslon Fund liability is produced for the College by an acluary from Hymans

Robertson LLP,
Depreciation rates are subjective but are in line with sector norms. Rales are approved hy tha Finanoce and
Resources Committee following advice from the Head of Estates. As a well maintained new collage. impairment

of fixed assels Is not considerad to be an issue.
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Beard of Management of South Lanarkshire Gollege is 8 body incorparatad under the Furiher and
Higher Education {Scotland) Acl 1932 sponsored by the Scottish Execulive and subsequently the Scottish
Eurther Education Funding Council until it merged 1o form a part of the Scottish Funding Council (SFC).

The Scollish Executive is regarded as a relaled party. During the year South Lanarkshire College had
varlous material transactions with the Scottish Govermnment and with other entities for which it is

regardad as the sponsor department viz: SFC, Students Awands Agency for Scolland, Scottizh Enterprise,
an extensive range of agencies funded by South Lanarkshire Coungil {including Routes to Weork South,
Childeare Partnership, Regeneration Cutcome Agrecment, Adult Literacy and Numeracy Initiatives) and

a numbar of other colleges and higher education institutions.

The Collage's Board of Management is drawn from local public and private sector organisations and as
such it is inevilable that transactions will taks placa with these organisations in which a mamber of the
Board may have an interest. Al transaciions invalving organizations in which a member of the Ceollege's
Board of Managament may have a material inferes! are conducted at arm’s lengih and in accordance
with normazl project and procurement procedures.

Curing the year the College had transactions or warked in partnership with the following publicly funded or
representative bodies In which members of the Board of Management held or held official posilions.

Member Organlzation Position
Mz P Robertson C.LT.G. Contracts manager

CITE are a training organisation for the construction indusiry. The College both supplies and recelvas Lraining
from this organisation.

The College had fransactions during the year with the following non-public bedies in which members
of the Board of Managemant have an interest and which in aggregale exceeded £5,000,

Purchases Balance
Member Organisation Pasition In the year at 31 July 2018
Mr 5. McKillop WoSCol Diraclor £9,525 1]
Mr G McDowall Andersan Strathemn LLP Partnar £11.412 11]

br S.McKillop, Principal of the College, is a director of the Wast of Scolland Celleges Partnership (WoSCoP),
a Company Limited by Guarantes whose members, collegas of furlhar education, pay an annual

subscription and provide vocalienal education and training supporlad primarily by EU Structural Funds.

The directorship is not ramunaralad.

26. IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Following reclassification, colleges receive what is lermed a non-cash budget to cover depreciation. This non-cash
budget cannol be recognised under the FEAHE SORF and has not been reflacted in tha Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Had il baen reflected, our results would have boen as follows:

year endad year ended

st July 2015 Mat July 2017

£000 £004

Surplus from SOGIE bafore other gains / (losses) jetid 15
Add  non cash budget to cover depreciation 197 227

Surplus on Central Government accounting basis for academic year 233 242
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7.

SUMMARY OF BURSARY AND OTHER STUDENT SUPFPORT FUNDS

Funds received from Scottish Funding Council {SFC)

2017/18 | | 2016017]
EE EE HE SFC SFC
Bursaries Childecare Hardship EMA  Childcare  Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Grants received in period 2,850 493 156 142 - 3,641 3,771
Bifwd from previous year 106 - - 15 - 121 130
Clawbacks re previous years - - - - - - (107)
Virements to NCL - - a - - - -
Internal virements (550) {148) 361 - 337 - -
Disbursements to students {2,295) (345) {517) {157) {337) (3851) (3,B673)
Funds from College - - - - - - -
Cifwd in Creditors - Note 14 111 - - - - 111 121
Analysis
Repayable to SFC 141 - - - - 111 108
Retained for students - - - - - - 15
111 - - - - 111 121
Funds received from Student Awards Agency for Scotland {SAAS)
[ 2017/18 | | 2016/17]
HE SAAS SAAS
Hardship Tatal Total
£000 £000 £000
Grants received in period 331 331 264
B/ffwd from pravious year - - 3
Clawbacks re pravious years - Y (3)
Funds from Cuollege - - i
Virements - - b
Disbursements to students {331) {331) (264)

Interest received -

Cifwd in Creditors - Note 14 -

Analysis
Repayable to SAAS .

Retained for students .

These funds with the exception of FE and HE Childcare, reprasent grants made available which are available
salely for the students, with the College acting only as paying agent. The grants and related disbursements

are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
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